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hand, English cathedrals were referred to as a model. Whereas in the past
they had seen ‘Deformation’ as well as Reformation, the interior of Christ
Church was now ‘returning to the earlier and better traditions’.

Parish magazines described the style of the building as ‘early English® And
Tucker wrote nostalgically that a peal of bells would ‘recall more than
anything else the peaceful fields or ancient streets of dear old England’,
as ‘music of the old hallowed land’. The builders also wanted to create
something permanent, again like the European tradition. One of the major
new furnishings of the church — the rood screen — was described in 1890
as ‘substantial enough and worthy to stand for centuries . ..’

In 1876, the Argus investigative jownalist *Vagabond’ was unimpressed with
Christ Church’s interior, describing it as dull, ugly and tasteless. The stained
glass was ordinary; a brass plaque was the sole ornament. But a conscious
ambition to be a leader, or have the best, fuelled the transformation of the
1880s. By 1893 Tucker claimed from statistics of worshippers that Christ
Church was Melbourne’s leading church, a flagship for ‘all the churches of
Australasia’. In 1891 the newly installed marble portrait bust of Lieutenant
Anderson was described as ‘a real work of art, and it is said that there is
nothing to equal it in the colonies’ — in many ways an accurate claim. It
remains one of the few works in an Australian Anglican church created by
a nineteenth century American artist. Other claims like this could some-
times be more a matter of local pride.

The previous year, when the rood screen was installed, Tucker described
it as “without doubt the finest erection of its kind that adorns an Australian
church’. Then it was certainly the only comparable example in Melbourne,
but soon Robert Prenzell would create the screen for St Paul’s cathedral
with its native flora and fauna; St David’s cathedral in Hobart would install
the most elaborate revival gothic screen in the whole country during World
War One, and fine but very different cast metal screens appeared in St John’s
Albany and St George’s cathedral, Perth. And despite the exaggerated claims
of local pride, there was more than just aesthetics behind the building and
its beautiful fittings. There were reminders from time to time that the heart

R















glass artists were located in Melbourne than in any other Australian city.
British-born and trained, they had a ready market in the city’s many parish
churches — their best work was of a high quality, lessening the attraction
of importing glass, though this often continued to be done by cathedrals,
or donors with deep pockets.

Ferguson and Urie, Melbourne’s first stained glass makers, who were
advertising in the diocesan paper in 1866, created the three windows in the
sanctuary above the high altar in 1881 as one of their last church commissions
— a major artist of theirs died the following year. Similar Ferguson and
Urie windows appear in several other buildings, including St John’s, Toorak,
and the former chapel of Trinity College. Large and impressive examples
from this studio include the Prince Albert memorial windows in Holy Trinity
Kew, and the west windows in Scots Church, Melbourne. When the Clayton
and Bell windows were installed, a contemporary Melbourne viewer thought
that the strong colouring in Ferguson and Urie glass was a better solution
to the more intense Australian light, which ‘drowned out’ the less brilliant
colours in the English ones.

Brooks Robinson and Co., who created the Resurrection window (west wall
ofnave) in 1892, appear to have commenced producing stained glassin 1882,
and eventually became Melbourne’s longest-serving stained glass producers.
The Christ Church parish paper commented on their success in attracting
British glass artists of considerable ability. Though the paper did not name
him, this was then true of one particular individual, John W. Brown, and the
remarkable treatment of the angels’ wings in the Resurrection window reflect
his connection with the celebrated William Morris and Co. of London.

Commissions on his return to England (such as his windows in the choir
and east end of Liverpool cathedral) show how competent he was even
in the highly competitive British market. At a more mundane level, the
tabernacling — the elaborate frame bordering the figurative work, modelled
on wood carving — was a characteristic of Brooks Robinson windows in
many churches, almost a signature. The principal of Mathieson Stained Glass
(later Mathieson and Gibson), the artists who created the window of the
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John Brown: The Resurrection John Hughes: Sacrific of Isaac

Blessed Virgin (south nave wall) probably trained with Brooks Robinson,
but their glass work also shows German stylistic influences.

The studio of Hughes and Rogers produced The Sacrifice of Isaac (south
wall of nave), installed in 1892. The remarkable tinting of the flesh (Isaac is
treated as a classical nude) indicates that the glass artist was John Hughes,
who had worked for Clayton and Bell, and who had come to Melbourne to
supervise the installation of that firm’s windows commissioned for St Paul’s
Cathedral. He worked briefly for Brooks Robinson, where Brown replaced
him, but quickly received other commissions, including the Last Supper
windows in the north gallery of Joseph Reed’s Independent Church.

William Montgomery (1850-1927), who had worked in London for Clayton
and Bell and migrated to Melbourne in 1887, was responsible for the
Tucker memorial window in the baptistery, and the St Michael, St Paul,
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links with St Paul’s cathedral, as also did George Porter, who gave sets of
candlesticks and crosses for the altar in 1881 as well as embroidered stoles
(vestments). He was a major donor of the cathedral’s high altar mosaics.

A group of fashionably dressed women ¢.1890

The lawyer Thomas Budds Payne (1819-97) gave £2000 towards the spire
as memorial to a daughter who died just before her twenty-first birthday; he
also gave £500 towards the north aisle. Edmund Gerald Fitzgibbon (1825—
1905), town clerk of Melbourne, a trustee and parochial nominator has no
memorial in the church, but faces Melbourne traffic from his full-length
statue in St Kilda Road. Horace Tucker’s role as a catalyst has already been
made clear.

Women feature prominently as builders of the church. In 1876, ‘Vagabond’
commented ‘it is needless to state that the ladies were all well-dressed
and handsome’ and late nineteenth century photographs bear this out. The
rood screen and pulpit were presented by Raynes Waite Dickson (b. 1845)
the president of the Law Institute of Victoria, as a memorial to his wife
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Above Raising of Jarius’s
daughter (detail)
Below St Patrick (detail)

Above and below Tucker (the older male) in
details of 1918 Montgomery window
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Tucker encouraged musical standards that reflected those of his congregation,
emphasising its importance by the relocation of the organ and choir and the
eventual installation of the rood screen, and even justifying the latter with an
exaggerated claim conceming its possible acoustical properties:

Waves of sound seem to dash themselves in clashing echoes against
unbroken wall spaces, while the presence of Gothic aisles, pillars
and screens imparts a clearness and soaring sweetness and fullness to
musical sounds that no bare rectangular hall could ever shape.

The first sung eucharist was celebrated in 1884. The choir became all male.
The school was envisaged as a choir school in 1898. Scholarships had been
offered by 1890; by the end of World War One, male soloists (including an
alto) were being paid. Extensions to the organ in 1916 and the creation of
new choir stalls indicated the continuing appreciation of the part played by
music in the liturgy.

Christ Church organist during World War Two, the Revd Howard Hollis
(1941-7), subsequently joined the staff of Westminster Abbey as a priest

QOrgan with Fullard at console
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